
Agenda

Housing Panel (Panel of the 
Scrutiny Committee)

Date: Thursday 5 July 2018

Time: 6.00 pm

Place: Plowman Room - Oxford Town Hall

For any further information please contact: 
Stefan Robinson, Scrutiny Officer
Telephone: 01865 252191
Email: srobinson@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-
- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Downloaded from our website
- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription.

Housing Panel (Panel of the Scrutiny Committee)
Membership

Chair Councillor David Henwood

Councillor Angie Goff
Councillor Lubna Arshad
Councillor Richard Howlett
Councillor Dick Wolff
Councillor Michael Gotch
Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers



AGENDA

Pages

1  APOLOGIES
Substitutes are not allowed.

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3  APPOINTMENT OF HOUSING PANEL CO-OPTEE
The Panel is recommended to agree the appointment of Geno Humphrey as 
a tenant co-optee to the Housing Panel for 2018/19. 

4  NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 7 - 12
To approve the record of the meeting held on 8 March 2018.

5  THE MANAGEMENT OF VACANT GARAGE UNITS 13 - 20
To consider the Council’s approach to the management of vacant garage 
units. 

6  QUARTER 4 HOUSING PERFORMANCE REPORT 21 - 26

To consider the quarter 4 performance summary for housing and 
homelessness matters.

7  HOUSING PANEL WORK PLAN 27 - 28
The Housing Panel is requested to agree its work plan for the year, which 
can be adjusted to reflect the wishes of the Panel at each subsequent 
meeting. In addition to the proposed work plan which features items that have 
been requested by the 2017/18 Panel, there have also been a number of 
new suggestions, listed at the end of the work plan, which the Panel is asked 
to consider. 

8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Meetings are scheduled as follows:

11 October 2018
12 November 2018
4 March 2019
8 April 2019

All meetings begin at 6.00pm.



DECLARING INTERESTS

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or 
himself but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as 
husband or wife or as if they were civil partners.



HOUSING PANEL (PANEL OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE)

Thursday 8 March 2018
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Councillor Henwood (Chair)
Councillor Sanders
Councillor Wade
Geno Humphrey (Tenant Co-optee)

OFFICERS PRESENT: Andrew Brown (Committee Services Manager), Stephen 
Clarke (Head of Housing Services), Frances Evans (Strategy & Service 
Development Manager), Dave Scholes (Housing Strategy & Needs Manager) 
and Stefan Robinson (Scrutiny Officer)

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Councillor Rowley (Board Member for Housing)

148. APOLOGIES

Apologies had been received from Councillors Goff, Paule and Thomas. 

149. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

150. HOUSING PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 3

The Head of Housing Services introduced the Quarter 3 Housing Performance 
Report. Key issues within the report were highlighted, which included:

 The year end target for granting planning permission for new homes had 
been exceeded.

 There continues to be good performance in limiting the need for 
temporary accommodation. In the last quarter, the number of households 
in temporary accommodation was 100 against a target of 120 or below.

 A rise in rent arrears was anticipated due to the roll out of universal credit. 
 Staffing levels were back to the usual level for the Income Team.
 There had been a rise in the number of rough sleepers recorded as part 

of the annual rough sleepers count. This had increased from 47 in 
November 2016, to 61 in November 2017.

 The average time taken to process new benefits claims had not reached 
the target, in part due to staffing matters.  

In response to a question from the Panel, The Head of Housing Services 
clarified that the HC016 performance indicator related specifically to affordable 
homes for rent, whereas HC006 showed the total number of affordable homes 

5

Agenda Item 4



built including those under shared ownership arrangements. The Panel 
requested that more detail be circulated after the meeting on why there had been 
delays in processing new benefits claims. 

The Chair asked what method was used to collect data on the number of people 
rough sleeping in the City. The Housing Strategy and Needs Manager said the 
figure of 61 recorded rough sleepers was the number recorded as part of the 
annual count in November 2017. This was the figure that was submitted to 
Central Government as part of wider national recording. 

A local estimate of 89 was also made, based on the total number of recorded 
rough sleepers, plus any unrecorded individuals that were presumed to be rough 
sleeping. Responding to further questions, The Housing Strategy and Needs 
Manager said the annual count was carried out between midnight and 4am, and 
that it extended to known rough sleeping hotspots outside the city centre. 

The Housing Strategy and Needs Manager assured the Panel that a detailed 
and robust methodology was applied to counting rough sleepers, and explained 
that only those who were bedded down were counted. At the last quarterly count, 
which was undertaken for internal recording purposes, 40 rough sleepers were 
identified. Responding to a question from the Chair, it was clarified that counts 
were not undertaken whilst severe weather emergency protocols (SWEP) were 
in place. 

Panel members expressed concern that 22 individuals had been rough sleeping 
for more than 6 months. The Housing Strategy and Needs Manager explained 
that efforts were made to get rough sleepers into overnight accommodation, and 
support networks were then placed around them. It was noted that some 
individuals would refuse this help. However, help would remain available to 
them. The Panel requested that more information be circulated to show the 
network of organisations that support rough sleepers in the homelessness 
pathway. 

151. ALLOCATION OF HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION FUNDS IN 2018/19

The Housing Strategy and Needs Manager introduced the report which was due 
to be presented to the City Executive Board on 20 March 2018. The report 
outlined recommendations concerning the allocation of funding for 
homelessness prevention activities. Key issues for the Panel were highlighted, 
including: 

 The City Council continued to operate pooled budgets with partners. 
 Approximately £1.8m for 2018/19 was recommended for allocation 

towards homelessness prevention.
 Funding was prioritised for securing supported accommodation beds and 

outreach services. 
 Approximately 167 beds were available across all accommodation types, 

which exceeded the target of 150. 
 In addition to bed spaces, there were 10 places of safety spaces 

available. 

6



In response to questions, it was clarified that Emmaus intended to operate 
without grant funding from the City Council after two years. The Housing 
Strategy and Needs Manager offered to provide more information to one 
member after the meeting about the funding arrangements associated with Edith 
Kempson House. 

The Panel agreed that the City Conversation event held in November 2017, 
which brought together various partners to discuss Homelessness, was a 
positive event. However, there was a need for this momentum to continue, and 
for actions or proposals to be developed. The Housing Strategy and Needs 
Manager said that £150,000 had been allocated over two years to support this 
work. A steering group and a worker had been identified to take this forward. The 
objective was to have developed a charter for all partners to sign up to by May 
2018. The Panel requested that the work of the steering group and the Charter 
return to the Panel later in 2018.

152. OXFORD CITY COUNCIL'S TENANCY STRATEGY & POLICY

The Strategy and Service Development Manager introduced the report which 
was due to be presented to the City Executive Board on 20 March 2018. The 
report contained a Draft Tenancy Strategy and a Tenancy Policy, as the current 
policy was due for renewal. The Strategy and Service Development Manager 
highlighted key issues to the Panel, which included:

 There were no fundamental changes to the proposed Strategy and Policy.
 The Housing and Planning Act 2016 sets out a mandatory requirement for 

Local Authorities to offer flexible fixed term tenancies. However, until such 
time that guidance is issued on the implementation of this requirement, it 
is recommended that the City Council’s policy is to continue with its 
current offer of lifetime tenancies. 

 Some tenures were offered at 80% of the market rate (which were still 
above Local Housing Allowance rates) and shared ownerships options 
are still not affordable for many people. 

 The Strategy and Policy must be reviewed once the new regulations 
come into effect, and this will be brought back to the Panel and City 
Executive Board.  

Members of the Panel asked why some Local Authorities were already 
introducing flexible fixed tenancies. It was explained that these authorities would 
review the status of their tenants after 4 years to assess their affordability and 
whether they could downsize. This would lead to a higher rate of tenant turnover. 

The Panel expressed concern over the impact the mandatory element of the new 
legislation could have on the City Council and its tenants. The Strategy and 
Service Development Manager explained that the new mandatory arrangements 
would require more resources to deal with an increase in occupancy reviews, 
and the need to support more housing reallocations. It was clarified that the 
mandatory fixed term tenancies would only apply to new tenants. 

The Chair asked whether the current policy would lead to house blocking, where 
one tenant may occupy a larger home for an extended period of time. The 
Strategy and Service Development Manager said there were alternative 

7

https://cityconversation.org/


provisions and incentives people to downsizing, and this was effectively 
managed without the need for fixed term tenancies. 

The Housing Strategy and Needs Manager said some housing associations had 
already introduced flexible fixed tenancies for new tenants. However, this did not 
apply to people placed by the Council into housing association accommodation. 
The Council’s own housing company would set its own tenancy strategy, but had 
already committed to offering lifetime tenancies, as this is a condition of the 
Oxford Register of Affordable Housing. 

The Head of Housing Services said Central Government’s intention was to 
reduce under-occupation through the mandatory arrangements. However, the 
Panel and the Board Member for Housing were concerned about the impact 
compulsory moves would have on tenant wellbeing, community cohesion and 
the maintenance of properties. The Panel were also concerned about the lack of 
good quality small housing units. Officers clarified that there may be exceptions 
for mandatory downsizing where children, for example, are living at home. 

The Strategy and Service Development Manager explained that the Draft 
Strategy would go out for a four week public consultation on 21 March 2018. The 
Panel noted that the median level of personal income of residents in Oxford 
compared to the average rental cost in the City presented a challenge for 
affordability. Nationally, rental costs were calculated to be approximately 25% of 
net household income; however this was calculated at 35% for Oxford. The 
National Housing Federation suggests that spending over a third of household 
income on housing costs can negatively impact on the affordability of other 
essential services.  

153. HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel received an update from the Committee and Member Services 
Manager on the future work programme. Key issues were highlighted, including: 

 There were several items left on the work programme.
 The work programme would be reviewed in full in the new municipal year.
 The Oxford Local Plan would go to the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 3 

July 2018, and the Panel would review the housing policies on 5 July 
2018. It was recommended that the whole meeting be dedicated to this 
issue. 

In response to questions from the Panel about the suitability of homes for an 
aging population, the Head of Housing clarified that new homes were built for 
lifetime occupancy, and £1.4m was invested each year into adapting existing 
homes. 

The Panel agreed that empty garages should remain on the work programme, 
for possible consideration at the next meeting. The Head of Housing agreed to 
provide the Panel with an update at a later meeting date. 

The Panel also agreed that the following be added to, or remain on, the work 
programme:

 The Tenant Satisfaction Survey.
8



 Actions taken following the City Conversation event (Autumn 2018).
 The Homelessness Reduction Act (Autumn 2018).
 Evaluation of temporary accommodation purchases. 
 Private sector regulation and oversight (e.g Houses of Multiple 

Occupation).
 Leaseholder relationships.

Officers said they would look at the option of scheduling a June 2018 meeting of 
the Panel. 

The Chair offered his thanks to the Panel and officers for their work over the past 
year. 

154. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Panel approved the notes of the meeting held on 16 January 2018. 

155. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Panel noted that the next meetings were scheduled as follows:

June (to be confirmed)
5 July 2018
11 October 2018
12 November 2018
4 March 2019
8 April 2019

The meeting started at 5.00 pm and ended at 6.20 pm

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



.

To: Housing Panel
Date: 5th July 2018
Report of: Head of Housing
Title of Report: Garage Asset Management Strategy 

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To provide members with an update of the activities 

being carried out under the Garage Asset Management 
Strategy

Key Decision No

Executive Lead Member Councillor Mike Rowley, Board Member for Housing

Corporate Priority An effective and Efficient Council

Report Author Ann Phillips, Tenancy Management Manager

Recommendation(s):
1. The Housing Panel is asked to note the contents of this report

Appendices

Appendix 1 Garages by ward
Appendix 2 Garage data by block

11

Agenda Item 5



Introduction and background 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Housing Panel with an update on the 

progress of the Garage Asset Management Strategy Board.
2. The Council’s garage stock is held within the General Fund Budget and passed 

into the management of the Tenancy Management team in December 2015. 
There are 1989 garages of which 650 are situated within the Blackbird Leys and 
Northfield Brook wards. Appendix 1 shows the breakdown of the garages by 
ward.

3. The condition of the garages varies significantly and historically many of the void 
garages were boarded up awaiting major repair. The Garage Asset 
Management Strategic Board was set up in May 2016 to produce and implement 
a long term plan for the Oxford City Council garage sites. 

Options Appraisal
4. The board has gathered and considered information from various sources and 

specifically considered in each area:

 The percentage of lettings and any waiting list (demand)

 Stock condition

 Cost of repair to bring up to a letting standard

 Cost of on-going planned maintenance

 Identification of garages that cannot be let due to condition or popularity

 The distribution of garages across the city

 Identification of alternative uses for the land where letting is not an option

Stock condition, responsive repairs, planned maintenance and improvements
5. A survey has been carried out of all the garage sites in the city and minor repairs 

carried out to bring the garage back into use where there is evidence that there 
is a demand for the garages. Some major repairs have been carried out 
including four new roofs to garage blocks in Northway, a new roof, doors and 
frames to a block in Normandy Crescent and repairs to an asbestos roof in the 
Grates. Six other block roofs have been prioritised in the maintenance plan for 
2017/18. This has resulted in 177 garages being brought back into use.

Lettings and marketing strategy
6. As repaired garages have returned to the available stock the Tenancy 

Management team have contacted those applicants on the waiting list to let the 
garages. The waiting list has been reviewed to remove those no longer requiring 
a garage and the waiting list currently stands at 288 consisting mainly of those 
applicants who require the high demand areas. 

7. The marketing strategy was implemented and the voids have reduced from 16% 
to 8.5% since the last report. The Tenancy Management team continues to work 

12



through the waiting list to ensure all possible lettings are made and garages 
returned are repaired and re-let as soon as possible.

Alternative site uses
8. There are a number of sites that are being considered for alternative use. These 

sites are primarily located behind housing and have inherent security issues as 
they are not overlooked. Appendix 2 lists the sites that the Board are focusing on 
for redevelopment and the proposed use of the land. A number of the sites have 
indications of the costs involved. 

9. A further site located at Champions Way, Littlemore was previously outside the 
scope of the project as it was miss-coded as demolished. The site has been 
surveyed as a potential housing development but is considered unsuitable. 
Other options for this site will now be considered.

Finance
10.A budget provision has been made for 2017/18 of £110,000 for day to day 

maintenance and repairs of the garages and an additional £77,000 per year for 
the next three years has been made available from the General Fund budget to 
carry out improvements to the garage blocks. 

ICT
11.Garage lettings have been handled manually for many years. A new void 

pathway in the housing management system has been created to automate the 
lettings process and to provide rigorous monitoring of performance.

Financial implications
12.The work carried out by the board has enabled us to bring valuable garages 

back into use and identify those sites where alternative use is the best option.  
13.The Board is in discussion with Finance to establish how the proposed works to 

the sites can be funded as the properties are held within the General Fund 
budget. Work carried out to the sites will improve the general environment 
around the Housing Revenue Account properties and a number of sites may fall 
within the proposed Blackbird Leys Regeneration area. There is also a strong 
link between the Great Estates programme and the revitalisation of the garage 
sites. For these reasons investigation is being made into the joint funding of 
some sites.

Legal issues
14.None

Conclusion

15.The vast majority of garages owned by Oxford City Council can be let and will 
continue to contribute to the General Fund.

16.A number of unpopular garages sites have been identified for development of 
new housing schemes and parking bays thereby reducing the need to utilise 
valuable green areas on the estates.

13



17.Works to garages have been aligned with other works to estates including the 
provision of off street parking and other schemes falling under the Great Estates 
programme of works.

18.Work is continuing to identify alternative options where unpopular garage sites 
are not suitable for redevelopment or the provision of off street parking.

Report author Ann Phillips

Job title Tenancy Management Manager
Service area or department Housing & Property
Telephone 01865 252203
e-mail anphillips@oxford.gov.uk

14



Appendix 1 – Garages by ward

GARAGES BY WARD

Barton & Sandhills 114
Blackbird Leys 527
Carfax 10
Churchill 164
Cowley 145
Cowley Marsh 123
Headington Hill/northway 89
Headington 17
Hinksey Hill 38
Iffley Fields 68
Jericho & Osney 79
Littlemore 112
Lye Valley 65
Marston 29
Northfield Brook 123
North 3
Quarry & Risinghurst 71
Rose Hill & Iffley 28
St Clements 28
St Marys 11
Summertown 33
Wolvercote 112

Total 1989

15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GARAGE DATA BY BLOCK

Garage site location Ward Number of 
garages

Action

Clover Place 918-922 5
Sandy Lane 129-160 31
Tucker Road 73-91 19
Willow Way 494-506 13
Evenlode Tower 576-599 24
Blay Close 43-58 17
Periwinkle Place 1140-1159 20
Kestrel Crescent 300-407 58
Peregrine Road 312-317 6
Sorrel Road 1266-1355 36
Sorrel Road 1366-1371 5
Pegasus Road 576-619 44

17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Performance Summary   

Green = target met Housing Panel Trends compare relative performance with 

Amber = within tolerance   Prd: previous month 

Red = outside tolerance    Prev Year End: previous March 

  Mar-2018 Year on Year: the same period from the previous year 

Measure 
Owner Result 

2016/17 
Latest 
Data 

Year End 
Target 

2017/18 

RAG Trend Comments 
 

Ref Description Result Prd 
Year on 

Year 

HP008 HP008: 
Number of new 
homes granted 
permission in 
the city 
 
 

Patsy 
Dell 

420 
Number 

721 
Number 

400 Number G  

  

 

  

Target for the year has been met and 
exceeded. 

NI156 NI 156: Limit 
our use of 
temporary 
accommodation 
at 2015 levels 

Stephen 
Clarke 

96 
Number 

107 
Number 

120 Number G     This is an excellent result, against a target 
of less than 120 households in temporary 
accommodation.  Reducing or maintaining 
the number of households in temporary 
accommodation is a challenging target in 
a very difficult external environment, 
where the demand for services remains 
high, and the ability to find suitable 
accommodation, at affordable rents, 
locally is increasingly difficult.  This result 
is testament to the continued exceptional 
homeless prevention work and temporary 
accommodation management undertaken 
by Housing Needs teams. 
 
 
 

19

A
genda Item

 6



Measure Owner Result 
2016/17 

Latest 
Data 

Result 

Year End  
Target 

2017/18 

RAG Trend Comments 
 Ref Description  Prd Year on 

Year 

BV066a BV066a: 
Percentage of 
rent collected 

Tanya 
Bandekar 

98.54% 99.42% 98.25% G     At the end of March 2018 the % of rent 
collected was 99.42% against a target of 
98.25%.  
We anticipated an increase in Rent 
arrears due to the full roll out of Universal 
Credit.  
9.74% of the of the overall arrears were 
Universal credit cases. 
 
We have successfully achieved our end of 
year target and are currently recruiting for 
our vacant positions within the team, 
aiming to increase collection and continue 
with good results. 

DS011 DS011: 
Percentage of 
Right to 
Repairs 
completed on 
time (Gas and 
Responsive) 

Sean Fry 99.66% 99.66% 99.00% G     YTD 15,820 jobs completed on time out of 
the 15,874 jobs completed 

DS012 DS012: 
Percentage of 
Routine 
Repairs 
completed on 
time (Gas and 
Responsive) 
 
 
 

Sean Fry 95.93% 96.92% 96.50% G     YTD 15,899 jobs completed on time out of 
the 16,404 jobs completed 

20



Measure Owner Result 
2016/17 

Latest 
Data  

Year End  
Target 

2017/18 

RAG Trends Comment 

Ref  Result Prd Year on Year 

HP003 HP003: The 
number of 
people 
estimated to be 
sleeping rough 

Stephen 
Clarke 

47 
Number 

89 
Number 

45 Number R     Rough sleepers estimate on a typical night 
in November 2017 was 89, an increase 
from 47 in November 2016. The actual 
count showed 61 people sleeping rough 
against a figure of 33 last year. There are 
a range of reasons for the increase: cuts 
to supported accommodation for rough 
sleepers by Oxfordshire County Council; 
housing unaffordable in the City with 
shortfall between LHA and median rent in 
PRS significant; majority of services for 
rough sleepers in the County are based in 
Oxford City, creating a draw to the City; 
clients falling out of services in the City 
generally stay rough sleeping in the City - 
19 of the 61 had accessed supported 
accommodation for rough sleepers in the 
past; 13 of the 61 had a connection to one 
of the other Districts in Oxfordshire; 21 
had no connection to Oxfordshire; only 6 
of the 61 found had a connection to 
Oxford City; 55 people found were already 
known to services, with 22 having rough 
slept in the City for over 6 months; high 
level of support needs for rough sleepers 
makes it more difficult and complex to find 
suitable and sustainable accommodation 
and support solutions –  25 had mental ill 
health (10 of these 25 were known drug 
users), 24 misuse drugs, 20 misuse 
alcohol. 

21



Measure Owner Result 
2016/17 

Latest 
Data 

Result 

Year End  RAG Trends Comments 

Ref Description   Target 
2017/18 

Prd Year on 
Year 

 

HC016 HC016: 
Number of 
affordable 
homes for rent 
delivered 

Stephen 
Clarke 

0 
Number 

27 
Number 

55 Number R     Completion of Abbey Road (5 rented 
units) and Westlands Drive (21 rented 
units) has slipped to April 2018 

HP004 HP004: The 
number of 
successful 
interventions 
with rough 
sleepers 

Stephen 
Clarke 

383 
Number 

304 
Number 

300 Number G     Target met. 

CS002 CS002: Time to 
process 
changes in 
circumstances 

Helen 
Bishop 

11 
Days 

17 Days 9 Days R     The challenging targets set for the year 
were unable to be achieved partly due to 
the introduction of Universal Credit in 
October and the workload increasing. That 
said, in the last few months we have 
continued to improve on the monthly 
figures and had that trend been consistent 
throughout the year we would have been 
closer to the targets set. For example for 
new applications we have been within the 
target for the last four months. Looking 
ahead, we have been given additional 
budget and with a good start we will be 
back on track. Local Authority error has 
dramatically reduced and if we can keep 
on top of the Admin delay by suspending 
payments, we are looking to reduce our 
subsidy loss this year 
 

22



Measure Owner Result 
2016/17 

Latest 
Data 

Result 

Year End 
Target 

2017/18 

RAG Trends Comments 

Ref Description Prd Year on 
Year 

CS005 CS005: Time to 
process new 
benefits claims 

Helen 
Bishop 

12.86 
days 

18.80 
days 

13.00 days R     The challenging targets set for the year 
were unable to be achieved partly due to 
the introduction of Universal Credit in 
October and the workload increasing. That 
said, in the last few months we have 
continued to improve on the monthly 
figures and had that trend been consistent 
throughout the year we would have been 
closer to the targets set. For example for 
new applications we have been within the 
target for the last four months. Looking 
ahead, we have been given additional 
budget and with a good start we will be 
back on track. Local Authority error has 
dramatically reduced and if we can keep 
on top of the Admin delay by suspending 
payments, we are looking to reduce our 
subsidy loss this year 

HC003 HC003: 
Homeless 
Acceptances 

Stephen 
Clarke 

125 
Number 

99 
Number 

132 Number G     Target met. 

HC004 HC004: 
Homelessness 
cases 
prevented 

Stephen 
Clarke 

1,107 
Number 

1,159 
Number 

1,100 
Number 

G     Target met. 

HP006 Total number of 
affordable 
homes 
completed in 
year 

Stephen 
Clarke 

20 
Number 

45 
Number 

74 Number R     Completion of Abbey Road (5 rented and  
1 shared ownership unit) and Westlands 
Drive (21 rented units) has slipped to April 
2018 

23



Measure Owner Result 
2016/17 

Latest 
Data 

Result 

Year End 
Target 

2017/18 

RAG Trends Comments 

Ref Description Prd Year on 
Year 

BV064 BV064: Empty 
homes returned 
to use 

Stephen 
Clarke 

22 
Homes 

23 
Homes 

16 Homes G     Target met. 

    1 
  

 

 

24



Housing Panel Work Plan 2018/19
5 JULY2018 
Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report Contact
Empty garages and 
former garage sites

No To receive an update on how the Council is 
dealing with empty garages and former garage 
sites.

Housing Martin Shaw, 
Property Services 
Manager

Quarterly Housing 
Performance Report

No To review the quarterly performance report for 
Housing Services.

Housing / Leisure 
and Housing

Stephen Clarke, 
Head of Housing

11 OCTOBER 2018 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS
Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report Contact
Oxford Rent 
Guarantee Scheme 
Pilot Review

Yes Review of the two year pilot to know if this pilot is 
to continue

Housing / Leisure 
and Housing

David Rundle, Private 
Rented Team Leader

Draft Local Plan 
(Housing Policies)

Yes To review the policies contained within the draft 
Local Plan. 

Housing Sarah Harrison, 
Senior Planner

Quarterly Housing 
Performance Report

No To review the quarterly performance report for 
Housing Services.

Housing / Leisure 
and Housing

Stephen Clarke, 
Head of Housing

12 NOVEMBER 2018 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS
Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report Contact
Tenant satisfaction 
TBC

No To monitor tenant satisfaction survey results. Housing Bill Graves, Landlord 
Services Manager

4 MARCH 2019 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS
Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report Contact
Allocation of 
homelessness 
prevention funds

Yes To review the proposed allocation of 
Homelessness Prevention Funds.  

Leisure and 
Housing

Stephen Clarke, 
Head of Housing

Quarterly Housing 
Performance Report

No To review the quarterly performance report for 
Housing Services.

Housing / Leisure 
and Housing

Stephen Clarke, 
Head of Housing

25

A
genda Item

 7



8 APRIL 2019 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS
NONE

Work Plan Suggestions for Inclusion

Outstanding items/ 
New suggestions Decision Description Lead Officer Suggested 

approach
1. Great Estates 

update
No To receive an update on progress made in 

developing masterplans for estates and working 
up and delivering a rolling programme of priority 
improvement schemes.

Martin Shaw, 
Property Services 
Manager

Commission report

2. Private sector 
regulation and 
oversight 

No To consider the effectiveness of arrangements 
to monitor standards in the private rented sector. 
For example, Houses of Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs).

Ian Wright, 
Environmental 
Health Services 
Manager

Commission report

3. Evaluation of 
temporary 
accommodation 
purchases. 

No To consider the benefits realised from the 
purchasing of temporary accommodation.

Dave Scholes, 
Housing Strategy & 
Needs Manager

Commission report

4. Affordable 
Housing

No To consider mechanisms for delivering 
affordable housing and the Council’s 
performance in delivering affordable homes.

Stephen Clarke, 
Head of Housing 

Commission report

5. Impacts of absent 
owners on housing 
availability

No To consider the impact of absent owners and on 
Oxford's housing availability.

Dave Scholes, 
Housing Strategy & 
Needs Manager

Commission report

6. Impact of the 
Homelessness 
Reduction Act 
2017

Yes To consider the impact of introducing mandatory 
flexible fixed term tenancies. This duty will not 
be enacted until HM Government issues 
guidance. 

Dave Scholes, 
Housing Strategy & 
Needs Manager

Consider report 
when new 
regulations are 
introduced

26


	Agenda
	4 Notes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	5 The Management of Vacant Garage Units
	Appendix 1 - Garages by ward
	Appendix 2 Garage Date By Block

	6 Quarter 4 Housing Performance Report
	7 Housing Panel Work Plan

